8:41:41 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COVM TTEE
April 5, 2011
8:41 a. m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 8:41 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Bryan Butcher
Bart on,

Juneau;

Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Ma Costello

M ke Doogan

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

David Guttenberg

M ke Hawker (alternate)
Reggi e Joul e

Tammi e W1 son

Conmi ssi oner,
Wendy Rednan,

Department of Revenue; M ke
Executive Vice President,

St at ewi de Prograns, University of Al aska.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

M ke Powers, Fairbanks; Jyotsna "Jo" Heckman, Fairbanks.

SUMVARY

AConfirmations:

Depart nent of Revenue
Bryan But cher - Comm ssi oner

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/05/11 8:41 A M



Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees
M ke Barton, Juneau
Russel | Webb, Anchorage

Uni versity of Al aska Board of Regents
Jyotsna "Jo" Hecknan, Fairbanks
M chael K. Powers, Fairbanks

8:42: 35 AM

BRYAN  BUTCHER, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
explained to the comrittee that his grandfather arrived in
Alaska in the 1940s after conpleting law school. His
grandf at her had been appointed by former Governor Walter
Hickel as a judge. M. Butcher was married and had two
children that attended school at the same school his father
did. He attended college at the University of Oegon and
noved back to Alaska to take advantage of the school |oan
forgiveness program He discussed that he had worked for
various senators in the Alaska State Legislature and
enphasi zed that he had nuch experience with the finance
commttees. He worked as legislative liaison for the Al aska
Housi ng Finance Corporation (AHFC) under Dan Fauske. He
rel ayed that he had been very happy to dig into the finance
aspects at AHFC

8:49: 02 AM

Representative WIson asked about the top priorities of the
Departnment of Revenue (DOR).

Comm ssioner Butcher replied that fornmerly DOR had been
referred to as the departnent of "no." He w shed to change
the reputation to that of the "departnent that solves
problens.” He stated that the housing and gasline issues
were very inportant to him He credited Pat Glvin and
Brian Andrews for changi ng DOR cul ture.

Comm ssi oner But cher continued that anot her priority
i nvolved the focus on the departnent as a whole. He val ued
his connection with each individual enployee as nodel ed by
Dan Fauske.

Representati ve Gara expressed t hat dedi cati on and
intelligence were inportant qualities for a conm ssioner.
He appreciated the governor's <choice in appointing a
conm ssioner who believed in his agenda. He stated that he

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/05/11 8:41 A M



supported the comm ssioner despite recent disagreenents
about HB 110. He credited Marcia Davis for her organization
and preparation when presenting argunents.

Representati ve Doogan wondered about the turnover in the
upper echelons of the departnent.

Comm ssioner Butcher informed the commttee about an
avai l able master auditor and several commercial analyst
positions. The primary focus included filling the tax

di rector position.

Represent ati ve Doogan wondered whether the positions would
be filled by the next |egislative session.

8:57:33 AM

Comm ssi oner Butcher responded that a year was a reasonabl e
time and that he hoped to have the positions filled during
the sumrer of 2011. He praised the DOR staff.

Vice-chair Fairclough recalled that the Alaska Children's
Tr ust encount er ed difficulties acquiring fi nanci al
statenents for snaller subaccounts. She relayed that boards
in the past had experienced difficulty obtaining accounting
information in a tinmely manner. She asked how many types of
funds were nanaged by DOR She understood the chall enges of
a smal |l fund.

Comm ssi oner Butcher responded that many funds were nanaged
in the GeFonsi pool. He offered to research the question
for Vice-chair Fairclough

Vi ce-chair Fairclough wondered about Conm ssioner Butcher's
hi ghest priority regar di ng t he staffing and wor k
envi ronment for DOR

Comm ssioner Butcher replied that his goals were related to
i nprovenent of the departnent on a division by division
basis. He planned to "get the work done and get the right
answer." He furthered that the nunber of conplaints in
Child Support Services and the Permanent Fund Dividend
Di vision were down fromfive years before.

9:01: 44 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/05/11 8:41 A M



Vice-chair Fairclough comented on the vacant positions
wi thin DOR She suggested that the comm ssioner inform the
coommittee of the potential need for salary adjustnents to
enabl e the departnment to hire the right people.

Comm ssioner Butcher replied in the affirmative. He agreed
that communication with the |egislature would further the
process of hiring for the very inportant vacant positions.

Representative Guttenberg discussed the audit division. He
understood that locating the right people for the positions
was inportant; however, he asked whether system c issues
mght lend clues to filling positions of master auditor or
di rector.

Comm ssi oner Butcher replied that the primary issue in the
audit division was |lack of auditors. He expressed pride in
the skill of the master auditors regarding analysis of
regul ati ons and decisions. He agreed that the tax director
held a very inportant, yet vacant position. He stated that
the interview process was ongoing. The departnment continued
to seek the right person for the position.

9:04: 53 AM

Representative Costello wondered about M. Butcher's views
on the departnents’ mssions and neasures. She believed
that accountability to the public was very inportant. She
asked about the conmssioner's view of mssions and
measures in his departnent.

Comm ssioner Butcher replied that he had been involved in
m ssions and neasures since his tine as a legislative
finance aide. He agreed wth Representative Costello' s view
regarding the inportance of mssions and neasures. He
di scussed a neasure that had been devel oped when he had
worked at  AHFC He believed that the neasure nust
accurately express the departnment's desires and goal s.

Representative Costello wondered what M. Butcher hoped to
acconplish during his tenure as conm ssioner.

Comm ssi oner Butcher hoped to | eave the departnent in great
condition. He wished to | eave the departnent wi th conpetent
enpl oyees to enabl e the best.

9:08:10 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/05/11 8:41 A M



Vi ce-chair Fairclough thanked M. Butcher for his work and
that of Lennie Dees, and Bruce Tangeman. She appreciated
t he DOR t eam

Co- Chair Thonmas wondered why the departnent refrained from
pur chasi ng new conput ers.

Comm ssioner Butcher responded that he was unsure. He
recalled that the legislature renoved a request for new
conputers from OVB one year. He agreed that the problem
deserved resol ution

Co-Chair Thomas commented on the loss of mllions of
dollars during the auditing process. He blanmed the
conputers and hoped that the problem would be addressed
soon.

Representati ve Edgnon supported AHFC energy prograns. He
coomented on the past focus on urban issues by other
commi ssioners. He hoped that opportunities to travel to
rural areas were never overlooked. He credited Sean Parnel
for travelling extensively around Alaska to gain the
greater perspective. He hoped that Comm ssioner Butcher
woul d choose to travel often as well.

Comm ssi oner Butcher prom sed the conmittee that he would
focus on the entire state.

Representative Doogan hoped that M. Butcher felt welcone
in Spenard anytinme. He discussed the poor results reported
for DOR in its last audit. He wondered what could be done
to inprove the process and ensure that the departnent was
not so far behind. He wondered whether there was a plan in
pl ace i ncrease alignnent.

Comm ssioner Butcher replied that filling the vacant
positions within the departnment was his greatest concern.
He expressed even greater concern about inproving the
process at DOR

9:15: 55 AM

Representative Doogan asked if the conmssioner had a
target for the inprovenent.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/05/11 8:41 A M



Comm ssioner Butcher replied that the summer of 2011 was
the departnment's target. He offered to neet wth the
representative on their progress at a later tine.

Representative Joule discussed the generation of oil
revenue for the state. He encouraged a conversation
regarding diversification of the econony and expansion of
sources of revenue aside from oil. He believed that the
conversation would prove difficult, but that the state
woul d be in a nmuch better position having had it.

Comm ssi oner But cher agreed.

Vice-chair Fairclough discussed the DOR Revenue Source
Book. She asked if the conm ssioner had ideas to inprove
the accuracy of the forecast. She recalled discussions
during hearings for HB 110 where a 20 percent differential
was noted. She credited the book for helping legislators
make deci si ons about deficit and surplus spending.

Comm ssioner Butcher replied that the forecast was often
overly optimstic. He wished to nmake the process of revenue
forecasting an objective one.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough wondered how many volunmes the DOR
stat ut e envel oped.

Conmi ssi oner Butcher did not know.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough wondered about the return of
i nvestnment. She queried whether the regul ations established
for the state were coordinated or in conflict wth other
areas of state statutes. She thought that the information
woul d be valuable for Al askans. She suggested regul ation
review to determ ne whether DOR was carrying out the wll
of the legislative body.

Comm ssi oner Butcher prom sed to ook into the matter.
Vice-chair Fairclough stated conflict wth the chosen
amount of $10 for non-profit proceeds from ganbling. She
pointed out that non-profits were struggling while the
department had chosen through regulation to cap the anount
of proceeds.

Conmi ssi oner Butcher offered to look into it.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/05/11 8:41 A M



9:24:10 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered whether there were objections to
nmoving M. Butcher's nanme forward as the conm ssioner.
There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

Co-Chair Stoltze appreciated the role of M. Butcher's wife
and children in his public service.

9:25:17 AM

M KE BARTON, JUNEAU, reported that he lived in Al aska for
33 years. He nmentioned that he and his wife and famly
menbers had been blessed to live in the state. He | ooked
forward to serving on the Alaska Mental Health Trust if
confirnmed.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough wondered about Conmm ssioner Barton's
passion related to nmental health.

Comm ssi oner Barton responded that Al aska had been so good
to him that he wanted to give back to the state. He
referred to experience with beneficiaries of the trust. He
stated that he wished to remain professionally active.

Representative WIson asked about the board's strengths and
weaknesses.

Comm ssi oner Barton responded that he was new to the board
and felt it presunptuous to comment on weaknesses. He
stated that the board and staff for the trust worked
extrenely hard. He hoped to contribute by enhancing the
revenues received fromthe trust assets.

9:29:15 AM

Representative WIlson recalled that the Board tended to
start progranms and then turn them over to the state. She
wondered i f sone prograns should continue with funding from
the Mental Health Trust.

Commi ssi oner Barton understood the issue.
Co-Chair Thomas spoke to his experience working wth
Comm ssioner Barton. He voiced concerns about Tongass ol d-

growh Jland exchange issues and queried the board's
posi tion.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/05/11 8:41 A M



Comm ssioner Barton explained that the issue was under
di scussi on and eval uati on.

Co-Chair Stoltze appreciated Conm ssioner Barton's service.

M KE POAERS, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), reported that
he was a candidate for the university Board of Regents. He
moved to Alaska in 1982 with the Vista program He earned a
master's degree in business with an enphasis in health
adm nistration fromthe University of Wsconsin at Mdison.
He had returned to Alaska after school and lived in
Fai rbanks for 25 years. He worked at Fairbanks Menori al
Hospital for 25 years as CEO for the last 16. He served as
chairman for two ternms for the Al aska Hospital Association.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked about his interest in the Board of
Regent s.

9: 35: 00 AM

M. Powers explained that he originated from a famly of
teachers. Upon returning to Fairbanks, he was inpressed
with the University's inpact on the conmunity and the
responsiveness to the needs for nursing outreach prograns.
He believed that the University nenbers were well
integrated within the community. He added that he had the
time required to commt to the Board.

Representative Joul e wondered whether M. Powers woul d have
the ability to focus on the state as a whole and not | ust
on Fai r banks.

M. Powers replied in the affirmative. He wtnessed a
statewi de focus fromall of the regents. He worked with the
Al aska Hospital Association on statew de issues, which he
believed denobnstrated a strong interest. He expressed a
wor | dvi ew that enconpassed the entire state. He responded
that the Fairbanks canmpus retained a strong relationship
with the Tanana Chiefs Conference, which also denonstrated
a broad view

Representative Joule wondered about M. Powers' view
related to rural outlying canpuses.

M. Powers believed that rural canpuses were vital. He
believed the rural <challenge related to resources. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/05/11 8:41 A M



opined that the canpuses felt overlooked and that it was
i mportant for Board menbers to engage with the canpuses. He
believed that the rural prograns defined the uniqueness of
our state.

9:41:41 AM

Vi ce-chair Fairclough explained that she had been the sub-
commttee chair for the wuniversity for the past several
years. She wondered whether he had read the Fisher report.
She asked for a job description of a nenber of the Board of
Regent s.

M. Powers had read the report. He provided that the job
i nvol ved advocating for and holding the President
accountabl e for advancing the quality of the University.

Vice-chair Fairclough wondered whether he believed he
should be directing the president of the university to
acconplish a goal

M. Powers replied that he would approve plans proposed by
the president. The president had the expertise to devel op
and reconmmend, with the approval comng from the Board of
Regent s.

Vice-chair Fairclough estimated that the Board of Regents
should be setting a strategic plan for the University
system She stated that the Chief Operating Oficer would
then inplenent the plan. She asked if the state had one
university or three.

M. Powers replied that the state had one university wth
three main canpuses containing three slightly different
m ssions. He elaborated on the university system and the
uni que needs of the separate canpuses.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough shared that she was informed by three
chancellors that the universities were threefold. She
di scussed the difficulty in pronmoting the growmh of the
university without an alignnent between the three canpuses.
She stated that the university budget was approaching $1
billion. She feared a challenge that the board was not
prepared to neet. She wondered how he mght handle an
envi r onnent where less noney was available to the
uni versity.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/05/11 8:41 A M



M. Powers replied that universities across the nation were
struggling with the sane issue. He proposed clarification
of the wuniversity's mssions. He expressed the need to
avoi d duplication.

9:48: 41 AM

Representative Costell o expressed concern that every nenber
of the Board of Regents would have graduated from the
Fai r banks canpus. She asked how he would work to overcone
the perception that the board would represent a systemwth
st at ewi de canpuses.

M. Powers replied that he was not a graduate of UAF. He
understood the concern that affiliations with Fairbanks may
drive a certain philosophy. He recalled a past conversation
regarding the shortage of health care practitioners in the
state. The solution was to create training opportunities
outside of Anchorage. He shared the opinion that services
nmust be offered outside of Anchorage and Fairbanks.

Representative WIson wondered when M. Powers had arrived
in Al aska.

M. Powers relocated to Al aska in 1982.

Representative WIson wondered why he attended graduate
school outside of Al aska.

M. Powers replied that he had |iked the social relevance
of health admnistration, but the University of Al aska did
not offer the necessary program in health adm nistration.
He did find the programin his hone state of Wsconsin.

Representative WIson discussed that she had been the chair
of K-12 education commttee. She asked whether the
uni versity systemrequired hi gher standards for students.

M. Powers responded that while his children had the
advant age of engaged and involved parents, not all children
are as fortunate. He opined that standards nust be
i ncreased and greater preparation for students in the K-12
years must occur. He believed that the faculty nust becone
highly engaged. He noted the inportance of wuniversity
advi sors who often help to keep students focused on a four
year time |ine.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/05/11 8:41 A M



Representative WIson wondered about comrunity coll eges and
M. Powers' opinion.

M. Powers replied that the Tanana Valley canpus provided
opportunities for student to acquire necessary skills.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked M. Powers' thoughts regarding
an Al askan nedi cal or |aw school.

M. Powers responded that Alaska was faced with a shortage
of physicians. He stated that he was not in favor of an
Al askan nedi cal school but preferred the idea of
pur chasi ng services. He spoke about a new nedical school in
Washi ngton that woul d provi de one source of physicians.

9:58:47 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered whether the nedical school was
nore of a political grandstandi ng idea.

M. Powers replied that the idea called attention to the
i ssue.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough was relieved that the nedical schoo
was not a high priority, as the cost was extensive. She
wondered whether M. Powers conmunicated in favor of a |aw
school

M. Power s believed that coll aboration wth other
uni versities woul d produce the best opportunities.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked M. Powers about his position
on the scholars program versus the governor's schol arship
program She asked if he would protect the scholar's
programif both prograns were avail abl e.

M. Powers opined that the scholars program was well
received. He knew that inconsistencies and unfairness
existed in the delivery of the program but maintained that
it provided a great boon to students and helped bring
students back to Alaska. He was in favor of a scholars
program but did not know enough about the governor's
proposal to speak to it.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough believed that the governor's program

intended to provide a nore vigorous curriculum to high
school students along with a required grade point average.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 04/05/11 8:41 A M



She supposed that if the governor's proposed schol arship
program was approved, sone mght consider it a duplicate
effort. She wondered if M. Powers m ght consider using the
$2 mllion in a different way.

10: 05: 14 AM

Co-Chair Stol tze wonder ed about t he i nconsi st enci es
connected to the scholars program nentioned by M. Powers.

M. Powers stated that he required nore information about
t he governor's proposed scholarship program He stated that
the scholars program served both highly conpetitive
Anchorage schools along wth Iess conpetitive rural
schools. He believed that the student graduating from the
nore conpetitive schools mght be nore successful in the
university setting, providing an inconsistency. He thought
the issue nust be further explored and the scholarship
pr ogram st rengt hened.

Co-Chair Stednman asked if sone rural students should not
attend the University of Al aska.

Representative Quttenberg interjected that M. Powers'
statenment was m sconstrued.

M. Powers countered the statenment nade by Co-Chair Stoltze
clarifying that college preparation courses are nore easily
f ound in t he ur ban school s, | eadi ng again to
i nconsi stenci es.

Vi ce-chair Fai r cl ough t hanked M. Power s for hi s
involvenent in the public process. She understood the
chal | enges acconpani ed by presenting testi nony Vi a
tel econference. She discussed the responsibilities under
the Board of Regents wunder the Alaska constitution. She
cited Page 25, Article 7 of the constitution. She expressed
concerns regarding M. Powers' view of his |eadership role
in contrast with the constitution. She pointed out that the
constitution states that "the university shall be governed
by a Board of Regents." She believed that the board had the
responsibility of formulating policies and that the
president carried out the policies by hiring an executive
officer to act on behalf of the board. She asked agai n what
M. Powers believed his |eadership role to be. She wanted
to be sure that if confirmed, M. Powers understood that he
was in a |eadership position that was accountable for

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/05/11 8:41 A M



setting a strategy forward based on all perti nent
i nformati on.

M. Powers believed that his role was to hire and to
evaluate and to possibly replace the president if
necessary. He planned to work with the president to advance
the m ssion of the university.

Vice-chair Fairclough wondered whether that was his
definition of governing.

M. Powers stated that was his definition of nmoving a | arge
organi zation. He promi sed to approve, debate, advance, and
advocate particular mssions and prograns. He did not have
the expertise to develop a program in nucl ear engineering
but he woul d approve and advance it.

Representative Gara asked about the regional balance for
t he Board of Regents.

VENDY REDMAN, EXECUTI VE VI CE PRESI DENT, STATEW DE PROGRAMS,
UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA, replied that there were five regents
from Anchorage, two from Juneau, and one from Kodi ak. The
newest additions would include two regents from Fairbanks.

Representative Costello expressed a simlar concern
regarding regional balance. She had asked Legislative
Research to provide history. She relayed that M. Rednman
had testified that people appointed from a certain region
woul d have an allegiance to the particular area. She
queried the Dbalance Dbecause, upon approval of t he
applicants before the conmttee, the regents wth degrees
from a University of Alaska canpus wll have received it
fromthe Fairbanks canpus.

10: 13: 52 AM

Representati ve Doogan wondered when degrees were first
offered from the University of Anchorage. He recalled that
the University of Anchorage was a community college
initially.

Ms. Rednman replied that the first degree offered through
the University of Anchorage was in the 1980s.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough wondered whether universities should
be accredited in a variety of ways.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/05/11 8:41 A M



M. Powers responded that he must be further inforned about
the prograns and their required accreditation to respond
accurately.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough understood but asked himto look into
the accreditation on the behalf of Al aska. She stressed
that each canpus ought to offer core classes despite the
argunments about duplication. She expressed concerned about
M. Powers' view regarding his |eadership role. She
understood his prior testinony to indicate that he would
defer to the president's good judgnment. She asked about M.
Powers' accountability to the students that attend the
Uni versity of Al aska.

M. Powers countered that the president was accountable to
the Board of Regents. He believed that a strategic plan was
typically devel oped through the adm nistration through the
faculty and student body and then advanced to the Board who
retains the ultimate authority. He envisioned hinself as an
advocate for the students.

10: 18: 53 AM

Representative Gara relayed runors that sone or all of the
doctorate programs should be housed at the Fairbanks
canpus. He wondered how M. Powers felt about the issue

M. Power s bel i eved t hat doctorate progr ams wer e
appropriate for other canpuses. He believed that the
University of Fairbanks should focus on their traditional
strengths of science and engineering. He credited the
Washi ngton, Wom ng, Al aska, Mntana, and I|daho (W\M )
School as the perfect exanple of a hybrid program

Representati ve GQuttenberg comment ed t hat t hat t he
University of Al aska was one school with many canpuses. He
credited M. Powers for his exceptional admnistration of
t he hospital in Fairbanks.

10: 21: 37 AM

JYOTSNA "JO'  HECKMAN, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
informed the commttee that she arrived in Fairbanks from
New Delhi India in 1975. She stated that she received her
bachelor's degree from the University of Fairbanks in 1979
and her nmaster's degree in 1985. She stated that she worked

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/05/11 8:41 A M



in the banking industry since 1979. She informed the
committee that she held the position of president and CEO
of Denali State Bank for the Ilast eight years. She
nmenti oned her husband and two sons.

Vice-chair Fairclough asked M. Heckman to identify her
role as a nenber of the Board of Regents.

Ms. Heckman responded that her role included establishing
policy, nonitoring funds, and hiring, supporting, and
eval uating the president of the university. She stated that
she would review the strategic vision proposed by the
presi dent. She pointed out that she was the type of |eader
who was confortable wth the evaluation of strategic
pl anni ng. She expressed confort in nonitoring positions and
provi di ng oversi ght.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked if M. Hecknan read the Fisher
Report and the MacTaggart Report.

Ms. Heckman replied yes.

Vice-chair Fairclough asked if M. Heckman believed that
the state had one or three universities.

Ms. Heckman responded one, the University of Al aska
including three different canpuses plus rural canpuses.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough noted that she would vote yes on the
confirmation of M. Heckman. She hoped that the candidate
would direct the president to work with the chancellors
wi th their understandi ng of one university versus three.

10: 27: 00 AM

Representative Gara comented on the issue of retaining
gualified teachers in the rural schools. He asked about the
potential for training rural teachers from rural areas
encouragi ng teachers to remain in the community.

Ms. Heckman replied that she |acked background information
about the topic. She guessed that the issue was conparable
to retaining law enforcenent officials in rural areas in
ot her professions. She believed teachers had an inportant
role to play in the developnent of young people. She
expl ained her experience wth hiring for entry Ievel
positions and the alarmng |ack of adequate education she

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/05/11 8:41 A M



wi t nessed anong applicants. She advocated for reeval uation
of K-12 practices to inprove on the dire situation in
Al aska.

Representative Quttenberg referred to Ms. Heckman's resune
and acknow edged the work of her father.

10: 31: 42 AM

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10: 32 AM

10: 32: 19 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/05/11 8:41 A M



